
RICHARDSON’S BAY REGIONAL AGENCY 
Board of Directors Meeting Notice 
Thursday, April 8, 2021, 5:30 pm 

Via Remote Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/4425459156?pwd=ZTRIaHdCRDQ2dU1PcllXZHNRZkNIQT09 

Meeting ID: 442 545 9156 
Passcode: 520819 

Coronavirus (COVID-19) Advisory Notice: In compliance with local and state shelter-in-place orders, and as 
allowed by Executive Order N-29-20 (March 17, 2020), the Agency will not offer an in-person meeting 
location for the public to attend this meeting. Members of the public may offer public comment remotely 
from a safe location as described below. Members of the Board of Directors or staff may participate in this 
meeting electronically or via teleconference. 

How to participate remotely: Comments may be emailed to chavel@marincounty.org in advance of the 
meeting; please write “Public Comment” in the subject line. Comments submitted at least one hour prior to 
the start of the meeting will be forwarded to the Board of Directors prior to the meeting start. Those received 
after this time will be shared with the Board members after the meeting. 

The meeting will be available to the public through Zoom video conference. Those who do not have access 
to Zoom may access the meeting by calling one of the toll-free phone numbers below.  

The Richardson’s Bay Regional Agency (RBRA) is inviting you to a scheduled Zoom meeting. 
Topic: RBRA Board of Directors Meeting April 8, 2021 
Time: April 8, 2021 - 5:30 PM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 

Join Zoom Meeting: https://zoom.us/j/4425459156?pwd=ZTRIaHdCRDQ2dU1PcllXZHNRZkNIQT09 

Meeting ID: 442 545 9156 
Passcode: 520819 
One tap mobile: 1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose) 
Find your local number: https://zoom.us/u/ayYK5Oc1j 

The RBRA encourages that comments be submitted in advance of the meeting. Those members of the public 
using the Zoom video conference function who wish to comment on an agenda item for public comment may 
write “I wish to comment” in the chat section of the remote meeting platform, or click on “raise hand” when 
that item is underway. Those members of the public attending by telephone who wish to comment should 
press *9 on their keypad. The Clerk will unmute the speakers one at a time at the appropriate time for public 
comment. 

Any member of the public who needs special accommodations in advance of the public meeting to attend 
may email the Agency at chavel@marincounty.org, or phone (415) 971-3919, and we will use our best efforts 
to provide assistance. If assistance is needed during the meeting, you may email jmalcolm@marincounty.org, 
and best efforts will be made to provide such assistance. 

https://zoom.us/j/4425459156?pwd=ZTRIaHdCRDQ2dU1PcllXZHNRZkNIQT09
mailto:chavel@marincounty.org
https://zoom.us/j/4425459156?pwd=ZTRIaHdCRDQ2dU1PcllXZHNRZkNIQT09
https://zoom.us/u/ayYK5Oc1j
mailto:chavel@marincounty.org
mailto:jmalcolm@marincounty.org


 

 

RICHARDSON’S BAY REGIONAL AGENCY 
Board of Directors Meeting Agenda 

Thursday, April 8, 2021 
 

https://zoom.us/j/4425459156?pwd=ZTRIaHdCRDQ2dU1PcllXZHNRZkNIQT09 
  

Zoom Meeting ID: 442 545 9156                Password: 520819 
 

PUBLIC COMMENT IS INVITED CONCERNING EACH AGENDIZED ITEM PURSUANT TO THE BROWN ACT.  
PLEASE LIMIT YOUR COMMENTS TO THREE (3) MINUTES.  

Please see above meeting notice information about options to comment remotely in advance, during the 
meeting via Zoom by writing “I wish to comment” in the chat feature, or via phone by typing *9 to raise 

your hand. You will be recognized to speak at the appropriate time during the agenda items. 
 

5:30 PM:  CALL TO ORDER IN REMOTE OPEN SESSION 
 

1) Call to order and roll call. 

2) Consent Agenda. The Consent Agenda reflects those agenda items with prior policy approval from the 
Board and/or are administrative matters. Unless any item is specifically removed by a member of the 
Board, staff, or public in attendance, the Consent Agenda will be adopted by one motion. 

a) Approve minutes of March 11, 2021. 

3) Presentation of the Draft Richardson’s Bay Eelgrass Protection and Management Plan (EPMP) by Rebecca 
Schwartz Lesberg, Coastal Policy Solutions. Staff recommendation: receive presentation, open and 
receive public comment, and provide direction for preparation of a final plan for Board adoption. 

4) Open time for public expression. Members of the public are welcome to address the Board for up to three 
minutes per speaker on matters not on the agenda. Under the state Brown Act, Board members may not 
deliberate or take action on items not on the agenda, and generally only may listen.  

5) Reports/comments:  a) Staff report; b) Board Member matters. 

 

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION: 
1)  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 
      Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to California Government Code § 54956.9(d)(2).  
      Number of potential cases: One. 
 
RE-CONVENE IN OPEN SESSION AND ADJOURN  

 

AN AGENDA PACKET IS AVAILABLE AT THE RBRA WEBSITE rbra.ca.gov and at the Marin County Community Development Agency, 
3501 Civic Center Dr. Room 308, San Rafael, CA  94903   (415) 971-3919   chavel@marincounty.org 

https://zoom.us/j/4425459156?pwd=ZTRIaHdCRDQ2dU1PcllXZHNRZkNIQT09
http://rbra.ca.gov/
mailto:chavel@marincounty.org


1 

RICHARDSON’S BAY REGIONAL AGENCY 
DRAFT MINUTES OF MARCH 11, 2021 

Board of Directors Meeting 
HELD REMOTELY VIA ZOOM 

5:00 PM: CONVENE IN REMOTE OPEN SESSION 
1. Call to order and roll call.
MEMBERS PRESENT:  Steve Block (Belvedere); Stephanie Moulton-Peters (Marin County);
alternate)                                                                                                                                                                              
MEMBERS ABSENT: Jim Wickham, Chair (Mill Valley); David Kulik (Tiburon)
STAFF:  Curtis Havel (Harbormaster); Jim Malcolm (Assistant Harbormaster); Jenna Brady (Legal Counsel)

5:05 PM: ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 
1) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION

Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to California Government Code §
54956.9(d)(2).  Number of potential cases: One.

6:15 PM: RE-CONVENE IN REMOTE OPEN SESSION 

Stephanie Moulton-Peters, Pro Tem Vice Chair noted that direction was given to staff and 
counsel, and there was nothing to report. 

2. Consent Agenda
a. Approve minutes of December 10, 2020.

b. Approve Resolution No. 01-21 authorizing execution of an agreement with the
Ocean Protection Council to receive Coastal Resiliency Grant Funds to support an
Eelgrass Protection & Management Plan.

No comment from public. 
M/S Block/Fredericks, to approve the Consent Agenda. Motion passed unanimously. 

3. Election of Board of Directors Vice Chair. Staff recommendation: Elect a Vice-Chair of the
Board for the conclusion of the current term (through June 30, 2021).

Comment/question from David Schoenbrum. 
M/S Block/Fredericks, to appoint Stephanie Moulton-Peters as Vice Chair of the RBRA Board of 
Directors through June 30, 2021. Motion passed unanimously.   

4. Information Item: Presentation about the purview and work of the Richardson’s Bay
Regional Agency (RBRA) by Curtis Havel, RBRA Harbormaster. No action required and no
questions from the Board (presentation available upon request).

Alice Fredericks (Tiburon



 2 

5.   Information Item: Presentations by Andrew Hening and Karen Strolia about ongoing 
outreach to individuals in the anchorage, including introduction of the two new Downtown 
Streets Team (DST) case workers deployed to Southern Marin through a grant program with 
Marin County Health & Human Services. No action required and no questions from the Board 
(presentations available upon request).  
 
Prior to item 6, Harbormaster Havel introduced the RBRA Board of Directors: 

• Stephanie Moulton-Peters, Vice Chair 

• Steve Block, City of Belvedere 

• Alice Fredericks, City of Tiburon (alternate standing in for David Kulik) 

• Jim Wickham, Chair (absent due to family matters) 
 
6.   Open time for public expression.  
Comments received from Robbie Powelson, Robert Tillman, Jack McDonnel and Eva Crysanthe. 
 
7.  Reports/comments. 
Harbormaster Havel introduced the new Assistant Harbormaster, Jim Malcolm 
 
8.  Adjournment. 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:00pm 
 
 



 1 

RICHARDSON’S BAY REGIONAL AGENCY (RBRA) 

STAFF REPORT 

 
For the meeting of: April 8, 2021 
 
To:  RBRA Board of Directors 
 
From:  Curtis Havel, Harbormaster 
 
Subject:   Draft Eelgrass Protection and Management Plan 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
Receive presentation on the draft Eelgrass Protection and Management Plan (EPMP), open and 
receive public comment, and provide direction for purposes of moving forward with the 
preparation of a final plan for Board adoption. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
RBRA’s 2020 Transition Plan provides policy direction to work with agencies, 
organizations, and other stakeholders to develop eelgrass protection measures and 
consider specific eelgrass restoration funding and projects. 
 
To pursue this direction, RBRA contracted with Coastal Policy Solutions to draft an 
Eelgrass Protection and Management Plan (EPMP) and to assist with grant 
applications to fund eelgrass protection and restoration work. 
 
At the October 8, 2020 meeting of the RBRA Board, Rebecca Schwartz-Lesberg from 
Coastal Policy Solutions presented a draft stakeholder engagement plan to the 
Board. On December 10, 2020, Ms. Schwartz-Lesberg presented a progress report on 
the stakeholder engagement, including a summary of comments to date.  Both these 
meetings provided an opportunity for public comment on the development of the 
EPMP and an invitation to participate in EPMP stakeholder engagement sessions. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
Coastal Policy Solutions has completed preparation of the draft EPMP for review, 
public comment, and direction from the RBRA Board for preparation of a final EPMP 
for adoption by the RBRA Board. 
 
The primary policy direction in the draft plan is to establish an Eelgrass Protection 
Zone/No Anchoring Area and an Anchoring Zone. In the Eelgrass Protection Zone, 
recreational uses such as sailing, motoring, fishing, and kayaking would be allowed, 
but anchoring a vessel would not be allowed because of its associated damage to 
eelgrass beds.  Any vessel wishing to anchor in Richardson’s Bay would be allowed to 
do so in the Anchoring Zone. 
 



 2 

The proposed areas of the protection zone and the anchoring zone were established 
through review and analysis of local, state, and regional policies, stakeholder 
comments, and data such as frequency and density in the location of eelgrass beds 
and herring spawning. Sources for this data included RBRA’s Ecologically-based 
Mooring Feasibility and Planning Study prepared by Merkel & Associates in 2019, as 
well as herring data from the California Department of Fish & Wildlife. In summary, 
the protection zone has been an attractive habitat for eelgrass beds and herring 
eggs, but is damaged and diminished by the anchoring of vessels.  
 
The proposed area of the Anchoring Zone comprises the area of the bay that is not 
eelgrass habitat due in part to its depth of six feet or more.  
 
The proposed boundary between the two zones is a line extending from Channel/Day Marker 
Four to the southernmost tip of the Richardson’s Bay Audubon Sanctuary 
 (see Figure 9 in the attached draft plan), with the Protection Zone consisting of the 
area north of the boundary line and the Anchoring Zone the area south of the 
boundary line.  
 
ANALYSIS: 
Establishment of protection and anchoring zones is a significant step in supporting conditions 
under which eelgrass can thrive. The proposed plan would protect more than 90% of the 
Richardson’s Bay eelgrass bed from damage from anchors, chain, and other ground tackle.  
Eelgrass is an important ecological resource for aquatic life, waterfowl, and the ecosystem and 
climate change protection as a whole - which drives the purpose behind protection measures.  
The protection zone allows both natural restoration and project-based restoration to occur 
with far fewer risks to eelgrass beds being damaged or otherwise compromised. 
 
Adoption of the zones will diminish the current area designated by RBRA as an 
anchorage by approximately two-thirds. As the anchorage transitions to a 72-hour 
anchorage for temporary use, it is anticipated the anchorage area will be sufficient 
to accommodate the level of interest from visiting vessels. 
 
In bringing a final EPMP to the Board, consideration will need to be given for timelines and 
implementation steps relative to the existing population of vessels on the bay; more than half 
of the current vessel census is anchored in the area designated for protection. It is anticipated 
that the necessary updates to RBRA Regulations, the United States Coast Pilot, and NOAA 
Nautical Navigation Charts would take approximately 1.5 years. 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: 
RBRA was recently awarded a grant from the Ocean Protection Council’s Coastal Resilience 
Grant Program for implementing Phase 1 of the Eelgrass Protection and Management Plan for 
Richardson’s Bay. The grant award allows RBRA to conduct Phase 1 Implementation Activities, 
which include: finalize the draft plan, pursue any necessary regulatory changes with the United 
States Coast Guard, perform monitoring and surveying of wildlife, habitat, eelgrass and bay 
bathymetry, conduct outreach and education, and manage the implementation of the plan. The 



 3 

grant award is in the amount of $ 324,681.31. With the exception of approximately $2,000 in 
materials and supplies, the local match valued at $89, 330.57 will be met with existing RBRA 
personnel and volunteer hours. 
 
NEXT STEPS: 
Following any RBRA Board direction on revisions, Coastal Policy Solutions will prepare a final 
EPMP for adoption by the Board, and work with staff on preparing for its implementation.  
 
Attach:  Draft Eelgrass Protection and Management Plan 


































